
ST. JOHN TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
ST. JOHN MUNICIPAL BUILDING MAIN MEETING ROOM 

10955 W. 93RD AVENUE, ST. JOHN, INDIANA 
October 23, 2008 – 7:00 P.M. 

 
Mr. Fryzel called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M., Boy Scout Troop #561 conducted a Flag 
Ceremony and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll call was taken with the following members present:  Michael Fryzel, President; Jerri Teibel, 
Vice-President; Mark Barenie, Member; Michael Forbes, Member; David Austgen, Attorney; 
Steve Kil, Town Manager and Sherry Sury, Clerk-Treasurer.  Also in attendance was Fred 
Frego, Police Chief; Fred Willman, Fire Chief; Bob Pharazyn, Director of Operations and John 
Mainwaring, Code Enforcement Officer.  Absent were Gregory Volk, Member and Chip Sobek, 
Parks Superintendent. 
 
Approval of the Minutes: September 11, 2008; September 18, 2008 and September 25, 
2008 Executive Sessions and the Regular Meeting of September 18, 2008 - Mr. Barenie 
motioned to approve the above minutes as stated.  Seconded by Mr. Forbes.  Motion 
failed with a vote of - 2 ayes and 2 abstentions by Mr. Fryzel and Ms. Teibel. Mr. Fryzel 
stated that this item would be added to the next agenda. 
 
New Business 
 
Consider Ordinance #1477, an ordinance amending Ordnance #1456, Town of St. John 
Salary Ordinance - Mr. Austgen stated that he prepared an amendatory ordinance that 
addresses the elimination of two jobs and a provision of separation severance compensation to 
those two individuals.  Ms. Teibel inquired if these positions, the two Class II full time positions, 
one in the Clerk-Treasurer’s office and one in the Building and Planning Department are 
eliminated.  Mr. Austgen stated that the positions would be eliminated when this ordinance is 
adopted. Ms. Teibel asked Mr. Kil if these positions still exist in the 2009 salary ordinance. Mr. 
Kil responded yes they will, but they will be vacant.  Mr. Austgen clarified that this ordinance 
proposes the removal of these two job positions from the salary ordinance; if and when, the 
council considers the 2009 Salary Ordinance and these two positions are included in that salary 
ordinance and that salary ordinance is adopted, those two positions can be reinstated to 
positions available for job opportunities here in the town.  Discussion ensued the possibility of 
the positions being filled in 2009 and if the people currently in those positions would be the first 
ones contacted to return to their jobs.  It was agreed that those employees would have a 
priority. 
 
Mr. Fryzel entertained a motion to consider Ordinance #1477 on first reading with the 
stipulation that the two employees that were eliminated would have the first priorities for 
the jobs if they ever fill those again. Mr. Forbes mentioned that this should be a stipulation on 
the 2009 salary ordinance.  Mr. Fryzel stated that he is stipulating it right here.  So moved by 
Ms. Teibel.  Seconded by Mr. Barenie.  Motion passed with a vote of 4-0. 
 
Mr. Barenie motioned to adopt Ordinance #1477.  Seconded by Ms. Teibel.  Motion 
passed with a vote of 4 - 0. 
 
Consider Edgewood Estates – Unit 4 – Phase 7 Letter of Credit in the amount of 
$70,950.00 (favorable recommendation from Plan Commission) - Ms. Teibel motioned to 



ST. JOHN TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING – October 23, 2008    Page 2 of 5 

accept the Letter of Credit in the amount of $70,950.00 Edgewood Estates – Unit 4.  
Seconded by Mr. Barenie.  Motion passed with a vote of 4 - 0. 
 
Consider The Gates of St. John – Unit 8 Letter of Credit reduction to the amount of 
$285,154.43 (favorable recommendation from Plan Commission) - Mr. Forbes motioned to 
accept the Letter of Credit in the amount of $285,154.43 for Unit 8.  Seconded by Mr. 
Barenie.  Motion passed with a vote of 4 - 0. 
 
Consider The Gates of St. John – POD 1 (Phase 1A) Letter of Credit in the amount of 
$348,644.67 be extended to September 26, 2009 (favorable recommendation from Plan 
Commission) - Mr. Barenie motioned to accept the extension of Letter of Credit in the 
amount of $348,644.67.  Seconded by Ms. Teibel.  Motion passed with a vote of 4 - 0. 
 
Reports & Correspondence 
 
Town Council 
 
Ms. Teibel stated that the Haunted House is doing phenomenal; in the last 4 days they brought 
in almost $21,000.00.  She credited Mr. Pharazyn with doing a phenomenal job in organizing 
the Haunted House with his creativity and advertisement and added they almost fulfilled what 
they told the council they would do. 
 
Ms. Teibel also stated that she had questions with just about every item on the budget and 
asked that someone clarify the longevity.  
 
Mr. Barenie stated that rather than individually respond to each question, for the residents and 
the high staff turnout tonight, he would like to give a an overall presentation of the process the 
Council went through for the past six to eight months, specifically the budget process.  This 
presentation would include some of the principles and guiding thoughts they went through and 
that he would then address any questions the Council, employees or residents may have. 
 
Mr. Fryzel announced a ten-minute recess at 7:20 P.M. 
 
Mr. Fryzel reconvened the meeting at 7:33 P.M. 
 
Mr. Barenie gave a PowerPoint Presentation that he had prepared, Exhibit A, that reviewed 
some of the processes that were used to come up with the 2009 General Fund Budget and 
stated that the top priority was public safety. 
 
Ms. Teibel asked how the longevity will work.  Mr. Barenie stated that there were not a lot of 
options of where to cut funds, personnel costs is the majority of the budget.  Everything affects 
the pensions.  Ms. Teibel stated that she feels that they overstepped their boundaries regarding 
the police take home cars and believes that the Police Commission should make that call with 
Chief Frego’s input. Discussion ensued. Mr. Forbes stated that the Council is involved from a 
budgetary standpoint by controlling fuel costs.  Discussion ensued. Mr. Barenie stated that this 
was an area he put on the table by requesting / recommending that Chief Frego put together a 
policy. 
 
Captain Bernie Johnsen, 9123 W. 90th Avenue – stated that he wanted to talk about the 
longevity issue.  He stated that there is no such thing as cutting longevity across the board 
because the years of service are different for most individuals. Longevity is an incentive 



ST. JOHN TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING – October 23, 2008    Page 3 of 5 

program and is concerned that his pension is locked into the longevity amount and he will not be 
able to recover.  He requested that they consider things that do not affect the people that make 
things happen in the town – the employees; perhaps they should look at events to cut 
expenses. 
 
Mr. Fryzel asked if anyone else would like to address the Council. 
 
Ms. Teibel stated that they should be creative and think of ways to bring in revenue to the town.  
 
Mr. Barenie stated that he wanted to clarify that the term “across the board” is departmental not 
by individual employee.  
 
Mr. Barenie thanked everyone for coming out and stated that he expected this kind of turn out. 
He stated that the Council did work very hard and explained how the reserves will be used. 
Officer Stamate asked if the employees could be informed at this time of what is happening 
rather than hearing the rumors and asked what other items or events were being cut. 
 
Mr. Barenie responded to Officer Stamate’s inquiry and apologized to the staff and their families 
for the ridiculous rumors that were circulated. He stated that he received phone calls from staff 
members asking about the 10-20% pay cut reductions, and a dozen people whose jobs were 
being wiped out.  He apologized for the misinformation, stated that these meetings were held in 
Executive Session, did not know how that information got from an Executive Session out into 
the streets and is very disappointed in the people in that room that let this information out.  
 
Mr. Barenie stated that he has personally received some very troubling and derogatory 
comments and had messages that can be construed as warnings or threats.  He received mail 
addressed to his home that his wife opened up.  All of this stuff is affecting him as well and that 
he will take a pay cut as well.  He cannot control the leak and wanted to make sure everything 
was completely done and set and that there were no other options that came in before the 
employees were notified. Mr. Barenie added that he is tired of being intimidated and his 
decisions on issues in St. John based on his independent thinking and no one else’s.  He will 
always look at the staff and residents as equal partners.  He may disagree with others but he is 
going where he heart tells him to go and this is where it tells him to go. 
 
Joan Millis, 9062 Howard – asked if the garbage fee would have been implemented earlier 
would it have helped the budget.  Mr. Barenie stated that basically they would still be $1 million 
dollars short. 
 
Mr. Paul Forystek, 9783 Hart Street – stated that he wanted to speak as a resident not as an 
employee. He asked if there are any other fees that can be charged?   
 
Mr. Tim Foley, Town Employee - suggested that they rethink the police take home cars.  Ms. 
Teibel and Mr. Fryzel interjected that this is a topic that is under discussion right now, no 
decision has been made and it has been turned over to the Police Commission.  Mr. Barenie 
stated that the out of town police officers will not be able to use the cars for personal reasons 
and referenced the recommendations being submitted to the Police Commission.  
 
Unidentified resident asked if there is someplace on-line residents could send suggestions.  Ms. 
Teibel responded that there is a place on the website to send in comments and that the council 
members can be sent a mass e-mail.  The webmasters are Rachel from the Fire Department 
and Ms. Teibel. 



ST. JOHN TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING – October 23, 2008    Page 4 of 5 

 
Mr. Barenie stated he will stay after the meeting to answer any other questions. 
 
Officer Turturillo – stated that the longevity is only 10% of the money and asked where the rest 
of the money is coming from. Mr. Barenie responded that the longevity was $42,000; they asked 
Mr. Austgen to reduce legal fees by $27,000; there are a few that he would like not to mention 
as Mr. Kil has not gotten the letter out yet.  There’s a newsletter, some lighting cuts of $5,000; 
fireworks possibly for $17,000; summer help for $30,000; $75,000 from the special police 
budget that will be used for the operating expenses and $102,000 for the two positions that 
were eliminated earlier in the meeting.  That gets them to $400,000. 
 
Officer Gardenhire - asked if the out of town use was considered in the recommendations.  Mr. 
Barenie stated that he assumes Chief Frego wrote that into his recommendation that if the 
officers live in the town limits, they can drive the vehicles.   
 
Officer Stamate - stated that it has been reported that a town council member saw his car, he 
lives in Merrillville, at Gander Mountain and he had a good reason for being there off duty. 
 
Mr. Fryzel stated that it was a hard decision to make some of the cuts; the longevity will be 
looked at every year.  He would like to talk to Mr. Austgen to determine if there was something 
they could do so it does not affect their retirement / pension.  Mr. Austgen stated that the 
compensation provided for in the salary ordinance includes longevity so you go to the authority 
as the legislative body to establish the compensation you pay the employees. Longevity is a 
component of that. As the ordinance was considered and adopted tonight to remove a couple of 
positions, provide a special severance compensation, the council has the same authority to 
establish or to define and describe how you will compensate your employees otherwise in 
addition to the bi-weekly wage and benefits that they receive that they are entitled to and to 
address how they can compensate for longevity in other ways as long as it is done in an 
ordinance and amend the salary ordinance to do so. 
 
Mr. Bill Dravesky, 9038 Howard – referenced the increase in fees and stated how it would affect 
someone like him, who is on a fixed income and asked the council to consider senior citizen 
discounts. Discussion ensued. Mr. Austgen referenced the opinion rendered to the council and 
stated that the fees must be fair, equitable, and non-discriminatory and if it is a cost based fee, 
example garbage, it must be based on the cost.  
 
Mr. Fryzel stated these are hard times and the Police Chief is going to make recommendations.  
He added that he appreciated everyone coming to the meeting tonight. 
 
Officer Moffitt – referenced the elimination of longevity, the effect of this action, inquired how 
much the council members receive and stated that there are other areas that can be cut. 
 
(Inaudible), 10522 Maloian Dr. - asked how much the lights are at the softball fields and if they 
considered shutting them off.  Mr. Barenie stated that the lighting fee is approximately $18,000 
and the council has not talked to the league about being more efficient with the lighting.  Mr. 
Barenie suggested that surveys could be utilized in receiving feedback from the residents to 
determine what services and events they are interested in.  
 
Ms. Cheryl Cribrari, 9380 Olcott  - stated that people want to know what is going on regarding 
the budget. Discussion ensued regarding the possibility of putting such information on a web 



ST. JOHN TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING – October 23, 2008    Page 5 of 5 

site for people to vote on, lighting conservation at the baseball fields and use by senior citizen 
teams at the fields. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer – None 
 
Staff 
 
Mr. Pharazyn stated that the Wildwood Drive storm water project would be finished next week; 
on Monday, Patterson Avenue would be closed for part of the day for a short time.  Today the 
new one million gallon water tower has been put in service and the levee around the Water 
Treatment Facility is done. 
 
Chief Frego read the September police report. 
 
Chief Willman read the September fire report. 
 
Mr. Mainwaring read the code enforcement activity report for September. 
 
Payment of Bills for the Corporation APV’s #8819 – #8997 for $1,055,565.53 - Mr. Forbes 
motioned to authorize payment of bills #8819 - #8997 in the amount of $1,055,565.53.  
Seconded by Ms. Teibel.  Motion passed with a vote of 4 - 0. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Adjournment – Mr. Forbes motioned to adjourn the meeting.  Seconded by Ms. Teibel.  
Motion passed with a vote of 4 - 0.  Meeting adjourned at 8:45 P.M. 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Sherry P. Sury, Clerk-Treasurer 
 
 


	Reports & Correspondence
	Public Comment

